
VICTORIA & ESQUIMALT POLICE BOARD MEETING 
PUBLIC MINUTES 
APPROVAL PENDING 
 

Tuesday, January 17,  2017 @ 5:00 pm  
Victoria Police Department, 850 Caledonia Avenue 

 
PRESENT 

 
Board: Department: 
Mayor L. Helps, Co-Chair 
Mayor B. Desjardins, Co-Chair 
R. Helme, QC 
D. Norgaard 
S. Powell 
P. Ryan  
M. Shaw 
B. Smith, QC  
P. Stockton 
 

 

A/ Chief Constable D. Manak  
Deputy Chief S. Ing 
Acting Deputy Chief C. Watson at 4pm 
Insp. P. Durrant  
Insp. G. Hamilton 
A/Insp. J. Laidman 
Insp. K. Lindner 
Insp. S. MacGregor 
Insp. J. Pearce 
Mr. S. Hurcomb 
Mr. M. MacIntyre 
Ms. D. Perry  

  

 
Recording Secretary : N.Mill, Executive Assistant 

 
The meeting was called to order at  5pm 

  
 

7. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION that the Public agenda of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board meeting held on 
Tuesday, January 17, 2017 be adopted as presented  

MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

MOTION that the Public minutes of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board meeting held on 
Tuesday, December 13, 2016 be approved as presented  

MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

 

 

 



Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board 
Minutes of the Public Session of January 17, 2017 
Page | 2 
 

This record and the information contained herein is the property of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board.  It is not to be  
reproduced, copied or further disseminated without the express prior consent of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board 

9. PRESENTATIONS  AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
9.1. New Board Member Appointment 
 
The board agreed that a swearing in ceremony for the newest board member would be done at 
the February board meeting.   A press release will also be issued announcing the appointment. 
 
9.2. Board Member Re-appointments 
 
Co-Chair Helps advised that Mr. Smith, Mr. Ryan and Mr. Powell had all been reappointed to the 
board. 
 
10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  (A/CC MANAK)  
 
10.1. VicPD Mental Health Strategy  

A/Chief Manak thanked staff for their hard work on the mental health strategy and specifically 
thanked A/ Deputy Chief Watson and Insp. MacGregor.  He advised that a  draft action plan will 
be coming to the board in April. 

Ms. Shaw commended the team for their work. 

10.2. 2017 Community and Business Survey Project 

This agenda item was moved to the In Camera agenda 

10.3. Chief Constable’s Report 

A/Chief Constable Manak provided a further update to the board on his written report. 
 
11. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
11.1. Finance Committee Update – VERBAL (Mr. Powell) 

Mr. Powell advised that there was no update at this time as the next Finance Committee 
meeting is scheduled for February 14th. 

11.2. Governance Committee Update – VERBAL (Mr.Ryan) 

11.2.1. 2016 Board Attendance 

The report was received for information. 

MOTION to approve Ms. Shaw, Ms. Stockton, Mr. Smith and Mr. Norgaard’s attendance at the 
BCAPB Orientation session on Saturday, January 28, 2017 



Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board 
Minutes of the Public Session of January 17, 2017 
Page | 3 
 

This record and the information contained herein is the property of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board.  It is not to be  
reproduced, copied or further disseminated without the express prior consent of the Victoria and Esquimalt Police Board 

MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

11.3. BCAPB Director’s Report  - VERBAL (Ms. Helme) 

11.3.1. Appointment to Executive Board 

MOTION to reappoint Ms. Helme to the BCAPB Executive Board and Ms. Shaw as the Alternate 

MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

11.3.2. AGM and Call for Resolutions 

MOTION to direct the Governance Committee to draft and submit a resolution to the BCAPB, 
whereas Police Services ensures there is a policy or best practise regarding board email 
accounts and compliance under FOIPPA.   

MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

MOTION to direct the Governance Committee to send a letter to Police Services outlining same 

MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

MOTION to sponsor a breakfast at the BCAPB AGM in Vancouver 

MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

11.5. Co-Chairs Report - VERBAL 

There was no report at this time. 
 
12. CORRESPONDENCE   in camera reason: Police Act s.69 (2)(a), (b) and (d)    

 

12.1  Letter from the Director of Police Services re new board member appointment 

The letter was received for information. 

 
NEXT MEETING DATE:  Tuesday, February 21 at 5pm, Township of Esquimalt 
 
MOTION to adjourn the meeting at 5:30 pm  

MOVED/SECONDED/CARRIED 

Mayor L. Helps 
Lead Co-Chair 
 

 Nicola Mill 
Recording Secretary 

Date 



©Victoria Police Department      Page 1 of 14 

 Victoria Police Department 

 

Administration Section Financial Management 

AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

References: 

 Purchasing Management 
Association of Canada Code of 
Ethics 

 Police Act 

 WorkSafeBC  Industrial Health 
and Safety Regulations  

 BC Bid 

Effective:   2009-07-22 
Amended: 2011-02-04 
Reviewed: 2011-05 
Amended:  

   
 

 

 

1.0 Policy 

(1) The Exhibit Control and Purchasing Section will provide support to Departmental 
employees to purchase goods and services.  

(2) All acquisitions of goods and services must be supported by the approved police 
budget.  

(3) Any intended acquisition of goods and services not supported by the approved police 
budget must be approved by the Controller and reported to the Police Board (the 
Board) 

2.0 Scope (Reason for Policy) 

(1) Under the terms of the Police Act, the Department will engage in the procurement of 
goods and/or services and incur expenditures of Public Funds. The purchasing and 
tendering policy provides information to guide employees and define their 
responsibilities in the process of purchasing goods and/or services for the 
Department.  

3.0 Statement of Principles  

(1) The Department will buy in the open market and seek the best value for its money. 
Qualified suppliers will be given the opportunity, either by direct notification or by 
some form of public advertisement, to quote or tender on items to be purchased.  

(2) The Financial Services Division mandate is to purchase materials, supplies, 
equipment, rentals and services when required by the various police divisions, as 
economically as possible with due regard for price, availability, quality and service, 
so as to provide the Department with the best value.  

(3) Maximizing the purchasing dollar of the Department depends on factors such as 
ensuring good quality, taking advantage of economies of scale, defining fair 
project/product specifications, maximizing returns on the disposal of Department 
assets, and ensuring consistency in the application of this policy throughout the 
Department. In addition, value for money does not always mean the lowest 
acquisition cost; in appropriate circumstances it may mean lowest life-cycle cost, 
which combines the acquisition cost and the subsequent costs of ownership. 



AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 2 of 14 

 

4.0 Ethics in Purchasing  

(1) Employees involved in contracting with suppliers for goods and/or services will 
comply with the Code of Ethics established by the Purchasing Management 
Association of Canada (PMAC)  

See Appendix “A” for Values and Norms of Ethical Behaviour. 

5.0 Purchasing Guidelines 

(1) An item that constitutes a one-time purchase or service and is of a value less than 
$5,000 may be purchased from a single supplier.  

(2) Purchases or services ranging from $5,000 to $50,000 will normally require written 
quotations from at least three suppliers and must be approved by the Controller. 
However, in the event of a request to purchase from a single supplier in excess of 
$5,000, a rationale must accompany such a request, and must be approved by the 
Controller prior to filling the purchasing request.   

(3) Purchases or services exceeding $50,000 and up to $100,000 require a tender to be 
issued and receipt of formal written quotations submitted by hand delivery or post.,  
will be approved by the Chief Constable or Controller 

(4) Purchases or services exceeding $100,000 require a tender to be issued and receipt 
of formal written quotations submitted by hand delivery or post, will be approved by 
the Chief Constable and Controller.  

(5) Purchases or services exceeding $250,000 require a tender to be issued and receipt 
of formal written quotations submitted by hand delivery or post, will be approved by 
the Board and Controller. 

(6) Each formal written quotation must be submitted on a formal quotation form.  

(7) Non-competitive, recurring expenditures such as employee training, professional 
membership fees, legal services, receiver general, utilities, integrated units, cost 
share arrangements etc., do not lend themselves to the competitive process. 
Consequently, quotations/tenders are not required; however, these expenditures 
must be reviewed and approved by staff authorized to approve such expenditures.  

(8) Where the Department has entered into a Purchasing Cooperative Group, or is part 
of a Cooperative Group for the purchase of certain commodities, divisions must 
consult with the Purchasing Officer to take advantage of these services where 
possible. The Purchasing Officer will be responsible for providing divisions with 
regular updates of the types of commodities and prices available through the 
Cooperative. The Department should take advantage of any corporate discounts 
negotiated by the City of Victoria.  

(9) Suppliers will be selected from the Purchasing Officer's established Vendor List    

(10) Where appropriate, tendered unit price rates with key suppliers and contractors will 
be considered, and approved annually.  

(11) Vendor invoices will be forwarded to Divisions for review, to ensure that the goods 
have been received, for coding to appropriate expenditure account and for approval 
of payment.  

(12) Approved invoices will be forwarded to the purchasing section for payment, 
processing and filing into accounts payable vendor files.  

http://carleton.ca/purchasing/wp-content/uploads/PMAC-Code-of-Ethics.pdf


AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 3 of 14 

 

(13) The Financial Signing Authority will approve all expenditures before any purchase is 
made. 

See Appendix “B” for Financial Signing Authority. 

6.0 Prohibitions 

(1) The following activities are prohibited:  

(a) the separation of purchases or services to avoid compliance with this policy, and;  

(b) purchases of goods or services from any employee or their immediate families or 
from any source that would result in a conflict of interest. 

7.0 Tendering Guidelines 

Calls for Tenders 

(1) The decision to use a public or select tendering process will be based on 
management's judgment as to which process is both cost-effective and provides bids 
from qualified vendors that are competitive and representative of the market place.  

(2) Tenders will be solicited from at least three suppliers. If a select tender is used, then 
suppliers from the established vendor list will be used where applicable. If public 
tender is chosen, the Department will use best judgment to determine the extent and 
type of advertisement.  

Exception to Calls for Tender  

(3) Goods and/or services may be sole sourced, in an emergency situation, with 
authorization of an Inspector if over $2,500, Controller if over $10,000, Chief 
Constable if over $50,000 and the Board if over $100,000. The reasons for 
circumventing the tendering procedures must be documented and reported to the 
Board and Controller.  

(4) The contract may be sole sourced. if only one qualified supplier is available or 
capable of providing the required service,  

Receiving Tenders  

(5) Each tender will be submitted as per the requirements in the tender document and in 
a distinctly marked envelope or package provided by the Department, be addressed 
to the Financial Services Division, and the envelope or package must be sealed. The 
use of the tender form is mandatory in every case in which a sealed tender is 
submitted.  

(6) All tenders will be date and time stamped upon being received by the Financial 
Services Division. Any tenders received after the specified closing time must be 
returned to the tenderer unopened.  

(7) All tenders will contain the full name and address of the person or firm tendering, and 
tenders must be signed in the spaces provided. In the case of companies or other 
corporate bodies, somebody with legal authority must sign the tenders.  

Evaluation and Award of Tenders  

(8) In general, it is the Department's policy to award contracts to the lowest bidder, 
meeting all of the Department's specifications. However, consideration must be given 
to such matters as qualifications, quality, source of supply, availability, suppliers' past 



AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 4 of 14 

 

performance, when arriving at the best, qualified, acceptable bid. The Department 
reserves the right to accept other than the low bid, in accordance with the principle of 
lowest life-cycle cost.  

Inquiries and Clarification  

(9) Inquiries and clarification regarding the Department's tendering process may be 
directed to the attention of the Purchasing Section, Financial Services Division.  

(10) Inquiries and clarification regarding the award of tenders may be directed in writing to 
the attention of the Controller, Financial Services Division.  

Notification of Bid Prices  

(11) Bid prices may be available to interested parties upon request and upon approval by 
the Controller, Financial Services Division or Divisional NCO.  

(12) Other details will be released in accordance with the British Columbia Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Privacy Act, which protects the business interest of 
vendors and the "negotiating" techniques of the Department. It is the policy of the 
Department not to disclose separate unit prices.  

Insurance  

(13) To assist in protecting the Department against losses, all contractors providing 
services to the Corporation are required to obtain and maintain insurance for a 
specified amount and duration indicated during the procurement process. Insurance 
must be obtained from an insurance company duly registered, licensed and 
approved to conduct insurance business in the Province of British Columbia, and 
such insurance may include:  

(a) comprehensive General Liability Insurance,  

(b) motor Vehicle Insurance,  

(c) professional Liability Insurance (Errors and Omissions),  

(d) products and Completed Operations Insurance,  

(e) course of Construction and Wrap-up Liability Insurance,  

(f) Separation of Insureds, Cross Liability Insurance  

(14) The Department shall be named as an additional and co-named insured with respect 
to the performance of the work(s).  

WorkSafeBC  

(15) Contractors shall be deemed to be the Principal Contractors within the meaning of 
WorkSafeBC's (WCB) Industrial Health and Safety Regulations for the Province of 
British Columbia and must comply with the WCB Health and Safety Regulations and 
all other WCB regulations that apply to the works.  

Documentation  

(16) All contracts subject to the competitive bid process will be documented and filed for 
future reference.  

In accordance with Department’s file retention policy  documentation will include the 
following, 

(a) the original approved purchase requisition describing the item or services being 



AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 5 of 14 

 

purchased; 

(b) a list of the vendors requested to submit tenders, or letters to them; 

(c) a copy of the request for proposal if applicable; 

(d) evidence of having submitted the project to public tender, if applicable; 

(e) tender documents from all bidders; 

(f) a list of bidders and a summary of their tenders; 

(g) reports to Police Board and evidence of Police Board approval; 

(h) the letter to successful bidder and a signed contract; 

(i) letters to unsuccessful bidders; 

(j) progress reports and payment claims properly authorized; 

(k) certificate of completion, and; 

(l) copies of the bid bond, performance bond, and labour and materials payment 
bond. 

 

 

(Moved from page 10 of 13 for information/comparisons) 

The following table outlines the financial spending authority within the department. These 

designated spending limits are still subject to Compliance with this policy 

 

 

 

 

 

Position  Financial Spending Authority  

Constable  No spending authority  

Sergeant  Up to $1,500  

Sergeant, OIC  Up to $10,000  

Purchaser Up to $10,000 

Staff Sergeant, OIC Up to $10,000 

Inspector Up to $20,000  

Deputy Chief Up to $75,000        

Director Up to $75,000 

Controller Up to $250,000       

Chief  Up to $250,000  

Police Board  Over $250,000  



AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 6 of 14 

 

 

  



AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 7 of 14 

 

APPENDIX A 

PURCHASING MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION OF CANADA  

PROFESSIONAL CODE OF ETHICS 

INTRODUCTION  

It is a condition of membership in the Purchasing Management Association of Canada and its 

affiliated Institutes and Corporation that members shall abide by the Constitution and the Rules 

and Bylaws of the Institute or Corporation in which they are members. This Professional Code 

of Ethics is binding upon all members.  

DEFINITIONS  

Purchasing Management Association of Canada means the national body of the association.  

Institute means the Institute of a province affiliated with the Purchasing Management 

Association of Canada  

VALUES AND NORMS OF ETHICAL BEHAVIOUR  

Values  

Members will operate and conduct their decisions and actions based on the following values:  

(a) honest/integrity: maintaining an unimpeachable standard of integrity in all their business 

relationships both inside and outside the organizations in which they are employed; 

(b) professionalism: fostering the highest standards of professional competence amongst 

those for whom they are responsible; 

(c) responsible management: optimizing the use of resources for which they are responsible 

so as to provide the maximum benefit to their employers; 

(d) serving the public interest: not using their authority of office for personal benefit, rejecting 

and denouncing any business practice that is improper, and 

(e) conformity to the laws in terms of: 

(i) the laws of the country in which they practice; 

(ii) the institute's or corporation's rules and regulations; and 

(iii) contractual obligations. 

Norms of Ethical Behaviour  

 To consider first the interest of the Department in all transactions and to carry out 

and believe in its established policies.  

 To be receptive to competent counsel from one's colleagues and be guided by such 

counsel without impairing the responsibility of one's office.  

 To buy without prejudice, seeking to obtain the maximum value for each dollar 

of expenditure.  

 To strive for increased knowledge of the materials and processes of 

manufacture, and to establish practical procedures for the performance of one's 

responsibilities.  



AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 8 of 14 

 

 To participate in professional development programs so that one's purchasing 

knowledge and performance are enhanced.  

 To subscribe to and work for honesty in buying and selling and to denounce all 

forms of improper business practice.  

 To accord a prompt and courteous reception to all who call on a legitimate 

business mission.  

 To abide by and to encourage others to practice the Professional Code of Ethics 

of the Purchasing Management Association of Canada and its affiliated 

Institutions and Corporation.  

 To counsel and assist fellow purchasers in the performance of their duties.  

 To cooperate with all organizations and individuals engaged in activities, which 

enhance the development and standing of purchasing and materials 

management.  

RULES OF CONDUCT 

Declaration of Interest  

Any personal interest that may impinge or might reasonably be deemed by others to 

impinge on a member's impartiality in any matter relevant to his or her duties should be 

Declaration of Interest immediately declared to his or her employer.  

Confidentiality and Accuracy of Information  

The confidentiality of information received in the course of duty must be respected and should 
not be used for personal gain: information given in the course of duty should be true and fair 
and not designed to mislead.  

Competition  

While considering the advantages to the member's employer of maintaining a continuing 

relationship with a supplier, any arrangement which might prevent the effective operation of 

fair competition should be avoided.  

Business Gifts and Hospitality  

To preserve the image and integrity of the member, the employer and the profession, business 

gifts other than items of small intrinsic value should not be accepted. Reasonable hospitality is 

an accepted courtesy of a business relationship. The frequency and nature of gifts or hospitality 

accepted should not be allowed whereby the recipient might be or might be deemed by others 

to have been influenced in making a business decision as a consequence of accepting such 

hospitality or gifts.  

Discrimination and Harassment  

No member shall knowingly participate in acts of discrimination or harassment towards any 

person that he or she has business relations with.  



AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 9 of 14 

 

Environmental Issues  

Members shall recognize their responsibility to environmental issues consistent with their 

corporate goals or missions.  

Interpretation  

When in doubt on the interpretation of these rules of conduct, members should refer to the 

Ethics Committee of their Institute or Corporation.  

  



AD090 Purchasing and Tendering 

©Victoria Police Department  Page 10 of 14 

 

APPENDIX B 

FINANCIAL SIGNING AUTHORITY 

Procedures  

While processing the expenditures against the Department budget, the following 

essential actions must be completed.  

(a) The ordering of all goods and services to be charged to a Business Unit is done 

by authorized individuals, who can certify that sufficient funds are available in the 

Business Unit budget to cover the resulting expenditure.  

(b) Invoices for goods and services to be charged to a Business Unit are certified 

that the billed goods or services have been received.  

(c) Payment requisitions are reviewed by the purchasing section to ensure that steps 

1 and 2 above have been completed and that the invoice is coded to the 

appropriate Business Unit account before payment action takes place.  

Authorities and Responsibilities  

The purchasing staff is responsible for:  

(a) conducting or facilitating the procurement for all Department goods, services and 

contracts; 

(b) issuing purchase orders upon the proper authorization being received; 

(c) disposal of assets including surplus goods and scrap; and  

(d) ensuring all transactions are in accordance with this policy and are conducted 

ethically and professionally.  

The Department NCOs are responsible for:  

(a) ensuring all purchases are performed in accordance with this policy; 

(b) delegating acquisition authority to appropriate levels; and 

(c) ensuring the Controller of Financial Services and the Chief is informed of any 

purchases requiring their involvement.  

Delegation of Signing Authority  

The Chief Constable has, under the direction of the Police Board, general supervision and 

command of the Victoria Police Department. In order to facilitate the performances of these 

duties, the Police Board has delegated its authority to approve expenditures contained in the 

budget to the Chief Constable.  

The following table outlines the further delegation of the Chief Constable's delegated financial 

signing authority. Outside the table below, financial signing authority may be assigned to an 

additional employee on a case by case basis.  

 

 
 


